






November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9

CITY OF ELKO
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
3:00 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2020

ELKO CONVENTION CENTER, TURQUOISE ROOM
700 MOREN WAY, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Reece Keener, Chairman of the City of Elko Redevelopment
Agency (RDA).

ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Reece Keener
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Chip Stone
Councilman Bill Hance (Arrived at 3:34pm)

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, Via Telephone
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Paul Willis, Information Systems
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 28, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

June 9, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*The minutes were approved by general consent.

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the 4th, 5th and 6th Street
Block End Project, Phase 1, Project 3 of the downtown corridor plan, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

This project will consist of the block ends pedestrian connectivity, landscaping, lighting
and other infrastructure.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that this project was the next step in the corridor plan.
Of Phase 1, this is Project No. 3. We are looking to go out to bid for this so that it can be under
construction in the spring. Staff is hoping that they can run this project in conjunction with the
project to underground the utilities in the alley of the 400 Block. The bid documents have been
included in the packet, it includes the 4th, 5th, and 6th Street block ends. The project narrows
down, and eliminates all the on-street parking on those block ends. It will also add pedestrian
connectivity, landscaping, lighting, infrastructure, and water for irrigating the landscaping. There
is also a small rounded patio area on both sides of 4th and 5th Streets for art and possible benches,
as well as lighting to highlight the area. The landscaping is just grass at this point. 5th Street is the
only one that is a little narrower, leaving the existing sidewalk that is there, since it was done as
part of the NDOT project. The sidewalk will remain and the landscaping will go into the corridor
on those two block ends. The landscaping on the 4th and 6th Street block ends will be brought
into the right-of-way.

Mayor Reece Keener asked if they were looking at losing four parking stalls on each end.

Ms. Laughlin said yes, that was correct.

Councilman Robert Schmidtlein had a question in regards to 4th and 6th Street. He asked if they
were going to be narrowed down to just two-way traffic.

Ms. Laughlin said yes, they would be narrowed down just to the traffic lanes.

Councilman Schmidtlein said if they were moving the curb line, it would become the planter area
with the benches and art. He asked if that was correct.

Ms. Laughlin said yes.

Mayor Keener said he imagined by looking at the design that a lot of that was surrounded by
being able to do it as affordably as possible. He asked if that was correct.

Ms. Laughlin said yes, that was correct. She explained that they were trying to stay within the
budget that was allocated at the beginning.

Mayor Keener asked if there were any take aways, that she hated to see go as a result of
budgetary constraints.

Ms. Laughlin said no, they pretty much did it at the lowest budget possible in the design. They
didn’t add any special features or elements. There are some unknowns when it comes to the
storm drain under 4th Street.

Catherine Wines, 421 Railroad Street, asked if all the trees had been removed. She said that was
what it looked like.

Mayor Keener said they had, that was his understanding.



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

Ms. Wines asked why. She explained that the last time the plans came to the RAC she didn’t
think there were enough trees, but there were a few trees.

Mayor Keener wanted to see what Ms. Laughlin had to say.

Ms. Laughlin explained that there were trees planned for the area. This was laid out between Mr.
Thibault and James Wiley based on the location of the utilities and trying to stay away from the
utility lines. They were planning to get the biggest trees that they could get.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager pointed out that there were eight trees on 4th Street,
eight trees on 6th Street, and six trees on 5th Street.

Mayor Keener asked where the trees were shown.

Mr. Wilkinson said they were shown on the Cushing Terrell Landscaping Sheets 301, 302, and
303. He explained that the plans called for six trees on 4th Street, eight trees on 6th Street, and on
5th Street there are six trees. The design calls for deciduous trees.

Ms. Wines maintained that that was not enough trees. In urban design, which is different than
designing a park, a consistent row of trees is necessary to create a barrier between vehicles and
pedestrians. If there are only three trees, that’s not enough. She also said that she didn’t see a
dimension on the half circles for the art.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, thought they had a 10-foot radius. He said they would be 20-feet
along the sidewalk, and 10-feet out from the sidewalk.

Ms. Wines said that would really limit the possibilities of pieces of art. She said her biggest
complaint was the trees. There are not enough to make an impact. She said if you drove down
Idaho Street right now there are trees there, but you can’t tell because they are spaced so far
apart. If there were double the amount of tress, then it would almost be a wall of landscaping,
which is a really nice effect.

Mr. Thibault explained that the landscape architect designed the trees to fill the space that is
there. He didn’t know if they were drawn to the scale of their ultimate canopy at full maturity.
They are planted as young trees. There are different species on different streets. 5th Street is
different because the space is a little narrower.

Mayor Keener pointed out that the plans indicated that the tree was a Shade Master Honey
Locust variety, and the mature size would be about 35-feet high and 20-feet wide.

Mr. Thibault said they would be like the trees along Court Street. They are significant trees; they
aren’t small decorative trees. They are designed to be mature trees that will fill the space. As the
parking blocks are developed to follow the 30% Plans, there could end up being more
landscaping on the other sides of the sidewalks. These plans don’t show that, because these plans
don’t include rehabilitating the parking lot. The 30% design includes additional landscaping on
the other side of the sidewalks. At this time, we are just trying to do the block ends, and leave the
parking and the corridor area alone



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

Mr. Wilkinson explained that the RDA has taken action, when they phased the project, to do it in
that manner. The plans that are presented are consistent with those actions.

Lina Blohm, 495 Idaho Street, explained that the RAC had not been meeting, so they haven’t
been involved with a lot of this, especially the new developments. She thought there were a
couple of things that they should remind themselves of. There is asphalt and concrete galore.
Where is that green belt and environmental pleasing community that they are trying to develop
downtown? Maybe they do need more trees. She asked if the trees would gave grates and guards,
like the ones on Idaho Street. We know how vulnerable the trees are without those.

Mr. Thibault explained that they would be tearing out asphalt and replacing it with lawn and
trees. A greenspace is being created. The trees would not have grates, because they will be in the
lawn. They don’t need sidewalk grates when they are in the lawn.

Ms. Blohm asked if Mr. Thibault visualized removing a lane of parking and developing a green
belt there.

Mr. Thibault explained that the on-street parking and the parallel parking on the other side of the
curb would be removed, and it would be replaced with grass, trees, and a sidewalk.

Ms. Blohm asked if it was for 4th, 5th, and 6th Streets.

Mr. Thibault said yes. 5th Street will be a little different, because it is an NDOT right-of-way.
None of the asphalt or curb within the right-of-way would be removed. Behind the sidewalk the
parallel parking would be removed and replaced with grass and trees

Mr. Wilkinson pointed out that the plans were entirely consistent with what has been approved
for the conceptual plan, the 30% Plan. This has also been presented to the RAC overtime. It has
been a period of time, since they have reviewed them. To demonstrate that it has, one of the
issues was the half circle art areas. The RAC voted not to include those in the plans, and the
RDA took action to include those elements in the design. This is consistent with the actions that
have been taken, and approved by the RDA in the past. These plans are not addressing the mid-
block areas. The RDA took action to rake off the block ends and try to do the block ends sooner.
The whole project is the corridor, which was going to take 30 years. Action has been taken to
build a Centennial tower and underground some things. This has been laid out in different steps,
or projects. As a part of that, based on the RAC’s recommendation, it was decided to take the
block ends and move them towards the beginning of the project, to get some benefits sooner
rather than later. One thing that this does is provide pedestrian access along the block ends.

Mayor Keener asked if it would need to go back to the landscape architect if they wanted to
make any changes, which would entail extra money and time delays.

Mr. Thibault said yes. He asked if there was something, in particular that they thought needed to
be changed.

Mayor Keener said he was just asking.



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

Ms. Blohm had some questions in regards to the irrigation system. She explained that the current
irrigation system was hit or miss in the existing tree wells in the corridor. She asked if it was all
going to be part of new system.

Mr. Thibault explained that some minor modifications would be made to the existing irrigation
systems and adding new irrigation systems for the new grass areas. Right now, the landscape
islands throughout the corridor are all on battery operated timers, and individual clocks for each
block. Those are being wired into a new clock, which will control all the irrigation west of 5th

Street. The blocks east of 5th Street will be tied into the existing clock that was recently installed
by train and the 7th Street Park expansion that was done. There will be some minor
improvements. We are not trying to rehab the whole block at this time. When that is done all the
landscape islands that are there now will probably have to be relocated later. At this point, we are
not doing a whole lot of work with those, other than getting them hard wired in and off the
battery-operated timers. If there are specific problems with certain landscape islands, they can be
brought to the attention of the Parks Department.

Ms. Blohm said it was pretty evident this summer that there were several that were not getting
any water. It is important to get that working.

Ms. Wines wanted everyone to take a couple steps back and look at what they are talking about.
Right now, each one of those blocks, in the 30% drawings that have been approved, is
redesigned and a row of parking is taken out. Everyone knows that everyone downtown will go
crazy if a row of parking is taken out. The likelihood of ever completely redoing those blocks,
rather than rehabbing what is already there, is pretty low. It is going to take way more money to
go in and rip out an entire block and redesign it. Parking will be taken out, which is not going to
be popular. The reality is, to talk about redoing those blocks and putting landscaping on the other
side of the sidewalks, Ms. Wines thought it was really low and way down the road. She thought
they needed to realize that the existing parking needed to stay and to make the block ends as
great as they can be. She didn’t think it was a good idea to approach it in this way.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that they were not proposing to redo the block ends. This is per plan.
The reality is an RDA was created, and part of that is to develop projects, objectives, and goals.
As required by NRS those projects, goals, and objectives are to fit with the projected revenues.
All of that has been done. The goal is to see the revenues come in and reconstruct the corridor.
The previous plan was going to substantially reduce the parking downtown. That was a big issue.
Staff took a look at it with the consultants and maintained as much parking as possible and
included as much landscaping as possible. That’s where we landed on the 30% design. That’s
what has gone through the RAC, it has been approved by the RDA, and it’s what we need to
execute on. We can’t keep revisiting and questioning where were headed. We’ve been doing
good job, but it always seems to be a problem when we want to execute.

*Councilman Bill Hance arrived.

Mayor Keener remembered that there was quite a bit of discussion on the parking survey and
they landed on the configuration that is in the plans being presented. He asked Mr. Wilkinson if
he had anything else to add.



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

Mr. Wilkinson wanted to add that they could stick with this landscaping plan, and as the City or
the RDA sees that develop, they could consider adding to it. Staff sought professional advice on
what should be put into that area and there was input from the Parks and Recreation Department.

Mayor Keener said it wasn’t a lot. It is $600,000 for what they are looking at, so it is around
$100,000 per 25’ wide strip on each block end.

***A Motion was made by Councilman Robert Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Chip
Stone, to authorize staff to solicit bids on the 4th, 5th, & 6th Street Block End Project, Phase
1.

*Motion passed. (4-0, Councilman Bill Hance abstained)

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of the continuation of the RDA Storefront
Improvement Grant Program, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

August 9, 2016 meeting, RDA directed staff to establish a Storefront Improvement Grant
Program with a maximum annual expenditure of $50,000 for the first five years, to be
reevaluated thereafter. The RDA has approved $272,228.81 in grants in the first 4 years
and therefore exceeding the previously approved allocation.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that Ms. Laughlin put together a memo recommending that we
continue with the program. She has clearly demonstrated and articulated in the memo the success
of the program. Ms. Laughlin recommended an additional 5 years at $50,000 per year, or a total
of $250,000. If we get to $250,000 before the 5 year period is up, then we can revisit it. There
are some photographs included in the memo and a spreadsheet at the end of the memo that
outlines the projects and their statuses.  It is a pretty successful program for Elko.

Mayor Keener said he was in favor of continuing the program.

Ms. Blohm asked if there were any outstanding properties that didn’t get included in the first five
years, which would be carryovers.

Mayor Keener explained that Ms. Laughlin mentioned a couple projects that haven’t been closed
out, that have not submitted their final invoices. The Underground Bar, the Living Stones
Church, and the Land Building are three that are still in progress. He asked if Mr. Wilkinson was
aware of any others.

Mr. Wilkinson added that Dalling Hall was still outstanding and the Wines Building still hadn’t
submitted for reimbursement either. There are quite a few outstanding, but we are obligated at
this point.

Ms. Blohm said that those funds were already covered, and they would not be a balance moving
forward. She just wanted to know what the bottom line was for the RDA funds with going
forward with the $600,000 block end project and the $250,000 for the Storefront Program.

Councilman Schmidtlein said it was $50,000 per year for the next five years.



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

Mayor Keener explained that Ms. Laughlin had planned on going through the financials in the
Reports section of the agenda. He then briefly went through the Budget Report. He mentioned
that the RDA would be paying for part of the parking lot project. He asked Mr. Wilkinson what
the expenditure was for the City.

Mr. Wilkinson said the RDA committed to $99,999 for the Stockmen’s Parking Lot, but it was
contingent on the Old Chicago Pizzeria going in. All of that is on hold, or not moving forward.
We have a commitment that may have to be unwound. It is something we will take a look at at
another meeting. Ms. Laughlin reached out to see if they would be interested in selling the
parking lot to the City or the RDA, where we might have some resources to address some
improvements to the lot. They were not interested in that, at that point in time. They might still
be interested in pursuing the parking lot improvements.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if there was still committed cost for the underground utilities,
where we were going to partner with Nevada Energy. He said he realized that they came back
and they were going to pick up a huge chunk of that, but he hadn’t heard anything for a few
months.

Mr. Wilkinson said it was pretty nominal. He thought the design fee that was paid was around
$3000 out of the RDA. He thought there was some cost sharing, it would be pretty nominal
going forward. It is a grant program. For all intents and purposes they will be picking up most of
that. What we have, that we will take a look at, is redoing some utilities in that alley. Rather than
see that cost be presented to the RDA as part of an RDA project, we are looking at if the Utility
Department could pick up a substantial portion of those costs to deal with water and sewer in that
alley. The RDA may pick up some nominal costs on some trenching that goes on in the alley. We
are still sorting through those issues.

Mayor Keener stated that he was very much in favor of continuing the Storefront Improvement
Program.

Councilman Schmidtlein thought it was a great improvement for the downtown corridor. It
speaks for itself.

***A Motion was made by Councilman Chip Stone, seconded by Councilman Robert
Schmidtlein, to approve the continuation of the RDA Storefront Improvement Grant
Program for the next 5 years at $50,000 per year.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

C. Review, consideration, and possible action to re-appoint the five members of the
Redevelopment Advisory Council, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Per the Redevelopment Advisory Council Bylaws adopted February 14, 2017, the
members of the RAC shall be appointed by the RDA annually in July. Due to Covid 19,
all advisory board meetings have been canceled and therefore was not brought to the
RDA in July.  The RDA shall appoint five (5) members to the RAC board. The RAC



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

board members shall satisfy the following criteria or have the following affiliations or
associations, and shall serve without compensation: (1) a member of the RDA, (2) the
president or designee of the Downtown Business Association, (3) the chairman or
designee of the Arts and Culture Advisory Board, (4) one member who resides within the
City of Elko incorporated boundary, and (5) one stakeholder from the redevelopment
area.  Lina Blohm, Jon Karr, Catherine Wines, Bill Hance and Jeff Dalling have indicated
an interest in continuing on the board.

Mayor Keener asked Councilman Hance if he would like to continue serving on the Board.

Councilman Bill Hance said it was up to Mayor Keener.

Mayor Keener said he was doing a fine job, so he would continue to serve on the RAC.

*** A Motion was made by Councilwoman Mandy Simons, Seconded by Councilman
Robert Schmidtlein to reappoint the five current members of the Redevelopment Advisory
Council.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Budget

B. NV Energy Lighting in Corridor

Mayor Keener gave a brief report on the progress of the Lighting in the Corridor. He
explained that he had lunch with the CEO of NV Energy in July and took him on a tour of
the different projects that the City is working on. They spent some time in the Stockmen’s
parking lot, between Stockmen’s and Commercial. They were able to see how dark the
lenses were on the lights. It was made very evident to them how ineffective the lighting is
and how it creates security issues down there. They have been active in looking for a
solution, and they evidently have two bids for doing that work. They will have to wait
until later on the lenses, but for now they have a LED lighting fixture that plugs in to the
existing lampposts, which should provide more light that what is there now. They do have
a requirement that they have to have three bids; however, there are only two companies
that were interested in responding.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Redevelopment Agency reserves the right
to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or
delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.



November 10, 2020 City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Mayor Reece Keener, Chairman
Redevelopment Agency



Agenda Item # I.A.  

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 

Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2020 Redevelopment 

Agency Annual Report, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: February 23, 2021 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS    
 

4. Time Required: 10 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Pursuant to the provisions of NRS 279.586, the agency shall 

submit to the Director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau, for transmittal to the 

Legislature, and to the legislative body an annual report on a form prescribed by 

the Committee on Local Government Finance. CL 

 

6. Budget Information: 
  Appropriation Required: N/A 
  Budget amount available: N/A 
  Fund name: N/A 
 
7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
   
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 2020 Redevelopment Agency Annual Report 

 

9. Recommended Motion: Accept the 2020 Redevelopment Agency Annual Report  

  

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 
12. Agency Action:  

 
13. Agenda Distribution:  



City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7100 (775) 777-7106 Fax

January 21, 2021

Rick Combs, Director
Legislative Counsel Bureau
401 South Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89701-4747

RE: Redevelopment Agency Annual Report per NRS 279-6025

Dear Mr. Combs;

Pursuant to NRS 279-6025, the City of Elko Redevelopment Agency “shall submit to the Director of the
Legislative Counsel Bureau, for transmittal to the Legislature, and to the legislative body a report on a
form prescribed by the Committee on Local Government Finance that includes, without limitation, the
following information for the redevelopment area for the previous fiscal year”.

Please find enclosed the City of Elko Redevelopment Agency Annual Report for 2020.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, at (775)777-7160.

Sincerely,

Reece Keener, Chairman
City of Elko Redevelopment Agency



CLGF Approved - October 2012 Page 1 of 1 Form #: 12-502  
    
   

Redevelopment Agency Annual Report  

For Redevelopment Areas Established Before 7/1/2011 

PURSUANT TO NRS 279.6025 

Agency Name:  _______________________________________ 
 
Project Area Name:  ___________________________________          Tax District Number(s) ______________________ 
 
Please Provide the Following Information:        Fiscal Year covered by this report:  _______________ 
 
1. Property tax revenue received from any tax increment area, as defined in NRS 278C.130:  _________________________________ a 

 
2. Combined overlapping tax rate of the redevelopment area:  __________ b  

 

3. Effective property tax rate of the redevelopment area:  ________c  (overlapping rate minus carve-out rate) 

  

4.     Total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in the redevelopment area: _______________________________ d 

 

5.     Is the amount in #4 (above) less than the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in the redevelopment area for any other 
previous fiscal year? 

  Yes  No 

 If Yes, please explain the reason for the difference (attach additional pages if necessary): e  ______________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________  

6.    Attach a copy of any memoranda of understanding (MOU) into which the agency enters. 

 Detailed MOU attached:  Yes   No 

 

7.    Attach a detailed amortization schedule for any debt incurred for the redevelopment area and the reason for incurring the debt. 

 Detailed amortization schedule attached:  Yes   No 

8.   Has there been any change to the boundary of the redevelopment area? 

  Yes  No 

 If Yes, please explain the reason for the change (attach additional pages if necessary):  ______________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This report prepared by: 

 
_________________________________ _______________________________________ ______________ 
Name (please print) Title Date 

  a Source: 

  b Source:    
____________________________________________________          c Source: 
Signature                  d Source: 

                         e Source:   



Agenda Item # I.B.  
 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 

Agenda Action Sheet 
 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for an extension to the 

Storefront Grant Program participant Braemar Construction. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION  

 

2. Meeting Date: February 23, 2021  
 
3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 
 
4. Time Required: 10 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The participant agreement signed by Dusty Shipp and 

recorded on July 7, 2020 states that the project would be completed within nine (9) 

months of the date of approval by the RDA Grant Review Committee. The grant 

was approved on April 28, 2020 and therefore would have been required to be 

completed by January 28, 2021.  Included in the packet is an email dated November 

12, 2020 asking for an extension. An additional letter was received from Braemar 

asking for an extension until August 11, 2021. CL 

 

6. Budget Information: 
 

  Appropriation Required: $25,000.00 
  Budget amount available: $25,000.00 
  Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 
 
7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
   
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter from Braemar, signed Participant 

Agreement 

 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve an extension to the Storefront Grant Program to be 

completed by August 30, 2021. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner/Redevelopment Manager 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 
12. Agency Action:  

 
13. Agenda Distribution:  























Agenda Item # I.C. 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of an amendment to the 

Storefront Improvement Grant Program guidelines and participant agreement, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: February 23, 2021 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS    
 

4. Time Required: 10 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Proposed revisions to the Program Guidelines and 

Participation Agreement are included. Clarification has been added to the timeline 

and term of the grant. CL 

 

6. Budget Information: 
  Appropriation Required: N/A 
  Budget amount available: N/A 
  Fund name: N/A 
 
7. Business Impact Statement: Required / Not Required 
   
 
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Program Guidelines, Participation Agreement  

 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve amendments as presented 

 
10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner & Redevelopment Manager 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review: City Attorney 

 
12. Agency Action:  

 
13. Agenda Distribution:  



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 1 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

Program Guidelines

A. Purpose
 NRS 279.566 requires that every redevelopment plan must provide for the participation and

assistance in the redevelopment of property in the redevelopment area by the owners of all or part
of that property if the owners agree to participate in conformity with the redevelopment plan
adopted by the legislative body for the area.

B. Program Goals
To ensure that all projects receiving City of Elko Redevelopment Agency (Agency) funds are consistent with
the City of Elko Redevelopment Plan and the Nevada Revised Statutes, any person participating (Participant)
in the Storefront Improvement Program (Program) must demonstrate that the proposed Project conforms
to the City of Elko Master Plan and that it furthers one or more of the following goals:

 The Project will eliminate blighted conditions
 The Project will promote economic revitalization
 The Project will stimulate private development
 The Project will enhance the City’s historic preservation efforts

C. Participation and Funding Requirements
 To participate in the Program, a person must be an owner or lessee of the property to be improved,

referred to in these Guidelines as the “Program Participant.”
 Either a lessee or a property owner may apply to be a Program Participant.  However, the property

owner must sign the Participation Agreement.  The lessee may sign the Participation Agreement as
well.

 The maximum Program grant funding that may be awarded is $25,000 per lot or parcel with a single
Assessor’s Parcel Number.

 The minimum Program grant funding that may be awarded is $2,500 per lot or parcel with a single
Assessor’s Parcel Number.

 The Program Participant shall pay 50% or more of the total project costs, depending upon the
decision of the Elko Redevelopment Agency (Agency).  Total project cost includes construction costs
and expenses incurred in the preparation and permitting of plans for the improvements, including
building permit fees, design work and construction drawings.

 Program Participants are competing for a very limited amount of funds and, as such, may meet all
criteria and yet still not receive any funds or the full amount of their request.

D. Application Period
 Applications will be accepted by the Agency between January 1st and March 30th of each year. If

March 30th falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday under the Laws of the United States or the



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 2 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

State of Nevada, then the time of such period shall be extended to the next date which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

 The Grant Review Committee, which is comprised of the five (5) members of the Redevelopment
Advisory Council (RAC), will meet in April to rate each application using the rating sheet provided in
grant program.

 The RAC will then make a recommendation to the Agency at its May meeting. The recommendation
will include proposed recipients and funding for each project.

 If the available, budgeted funding is not fully expended in any given application review cycle,
applications will be accepted on a first-come, first-served basis until all available, budgeted funding
is exhausted.

E. Completion of Storefront Improvements
 No Work shall be undertaken until the proposed design has been submitted to and approved by the

RDA.
 All Work shall be completed within twelve (-12) months of the date of theis signed participant

agreement or a building permit is issued by the City of Elko (whichever is later).  If a building permit
is required, the grant recipient must submit all necessary applications and other documentation
needed to obtain the building permit to the City of Elko Building Department within one hundred
twenty (120) days fromof the date of Agency approval.

 All storefront improvements must be completed within nine (9) months of the date of the signed
participant agreement or a building permit is issued by the City of Elko (whichever is later), unless a
written extension is granted by the Agency. Failure to meet any this deadline may, at the discretion
of the Agency, result in the cancellation of all Agency obligations to reimburse the Program
Participant for any otherwise eligible past or future Program costs.

F. Eligible Properties and Businesses
All of the following requirements must be satisfied for a Project to receive funding:

1. The Project must be located within the City of Elko Redevelopment Area.
2. The Applicant must be the property owner(s) or a lessee(s) of a program-eligible building.
3. The property owner must sign the Application or provide a signed letter clearly stating support for

the lessee’s Application.
4. The property owner must sign the Program Participation Agreement, which is a binding contract.
5. The Program Participant may not apply for more than one (1) Agency-funded incentive per Agency

fiscal year.
6. The property on which the Project is situated must be free of all mechanic’s liens at the time of

Application.
7. Neither the Program Participant nor the property owner may be listed as debtors in bankruptcy

proceedings, or have declared bankruptcy within five (5) years prior to the date the Application is
submitted.

8. The Program Participant must have a current City of Elko business license, if required.



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 3 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

9. The Project property must be properly zoned for all existing and proposed uses.
10. Neither the Program Participant nor the property owner may be delinquent on any Federal, state, or

local taxes.
11. Neither the Applicant nor the property owner may be delinquent on any bills or debts payable to the

City of Elko.

G. Ineligible Properties and Uses
The following are ineligible for participation in the Program:

1. Single family residential properties
2. Multi-family residential properties that have no commercial permitted use on same parcel
3. Buildings constructed within five (5) years prior to Application
4. Properties determined by the City of Elko to be in violation of the City Code (not to include legal

non-conforming uses)
5. Properties which have received funding from the Agency, or from the City of Elko, within the year

prior to Application for capital improvements, on-site improvements or off-site improvements
6. Government offices and agencies (non-governmental tenants are eligible) or other non-taxed

entities
7. Properties with respect to which a portion of the property taxes (if property taxes are required) are

not allocated to the City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

H. Eligible Improvements
The following are the types of improvements considered eligible for Program funding:

 Painting of the entire building façade, including decorative architectural elements. This includes all
facades viewable from the public right-of-way.

 Installation of new or repair/replacement of existing windows and doors
 Remodeling of entry ways
 Installation or restoration of lighting
 Installation of new or repair/replacement of existing awnings
 Cleaning of exterior walls
 Restoration or renovation of exterior façades, including but not limited to siding, stone, tile, stucco

and brick, to include demolition of existing façade
 Installation of new or repair of existing fascia, cornices, architectural details, gutters and

downspouts
 Installation of new or restoration of existing signage
 Installation of roofs that are a visible decorative element of the facade

I. Ineligible Improvements
The following types of improvements are ineligible for Program funding:



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 4 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

 Installation, maintenance or repair of landscaping
 Installation, maintenance or repairs of roofs (except for roofs that are a visible decorative element

of the façade)
 Repair of foundations
 Installation or repair of sidewalks
 Improvements required solely for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act
 Installation or repair of billboards that are not affixed to the building
 Installation or repair of security systems, including but not limited to video cameras, security bars

and razor or barbed wire fencing.
 Installation or repair of window coverings
 Interior modifications
 Purchase, installation or repair of personal property or equipment
 Repairs to asphalt and parking lots
 Installation, repair or maintenance of personal property that has not been permanently attached to

the building
 Installation, maintenance or repair of awnings, without more

J. Bidding/Construction/Permits
1. Program Participants are responsible for the design of the Project and for obtaining the necessary

bids.
2. Program Participants must obtain three (3) competitive third-party contractor bids for the proposed

work.  All such contractors must be licensed by the State of Nevada, have in effect any required
contractor’s bonds, and have in place all necessary City of Elko licenses.

3. Reimbursement amounts for Progress and Final Payments will be calculated based on the lowest of
the three (3) bids.  The Program Participant may select any of the three (3) bidders to construct the
Project; however, the Program Participant will be responsible for any such costs in excess of the
lowest bid.

a. Construction contracts will be between the Program Participant and the contractor; the
Agency will not be a party to any construction contract under the Program.  The contractor
must obtain all required permits prior to commencing work.

b. The contractor that is selected to perform the Project must provide the Agency with
certificates of insurance evidencing coverage against bodily injury and property damage,
with limits of $1M occurrence/$2M aggregate; $1M commercial auto coverage; and Nevada
workers compensation coverage (or employer’s liability coverage) covering all employees
for no less than the amount required by law.

4. The final selection of a contractor is the sole responsibility of the Program Participant.  The Agency
has no responsibility for the performance of the work.

5. The quality, timeliness and completeness of the work performed on the Project are matters to be
resolved between the Program Participant and the contractor, notwithstanding the Agency’s
reimbursement requirements.



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 5 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

6. The Program Participant is advised, for its own protection, to obtain a written warranty for the
Project work from the contractor.

7. Design work is a reimbursable expense (as stated in Section C); provided, design work must be
included in the three (3) competitive bids to be considered part of the Program grant.

8.7.

K. Grant Review
Applicants will be selected for participation in the Program and reimbursement amounts will be calculated
based on the following process:

1. The Grant Review Committee will determine the eligibility of each Application using a rating sheet.
2. Each member of the Grant Review Committee will rate each proposed Project based on the points

shown on the rating sheet. A total score will be given to each proposed Project based upon the total
of all points on the rating sheets.

3. Reimbursement amounts will be determined based on the lowest bid amount submitted in the
Application, even if the Program Participant selects a different contractor.

4. Any costs associated with the Project that are not shown on lowest bid will be the sole responsibility
of the Program Participant and will not be included in the reimbursement calculation.

L. Redevelopment Agency Approval
The following process will be used in awarding Program grants:

1. The Grant Review Committee will recommend to the Agency the proposed recipient(s) of each grant
and the program funding amount.

2. The Agency has the discretion to approve or deny any and/or all the recommended Applications.
3. Program Participants with Agency approved projects must sign a participation agreement with the

Agency before the Agency has any obligation to the Program Participant. SuchThe participation
agreement must be signed by the participant and submitted to the Agency within thirty (30) days of
Agency approval. The participation agreement is a binding contract that establishes the rights and
obligations of the parties.

4. Notwithstanding any other provision contained in these Guidelines, in the event the Grant Review
Committee is prevented from meeting due to circumstances beyond the control of the Agency, to
include acts of God, such as severe acts of nature or weather events including floods, fires,
earthquakes, hurricanes, or explosions; war, acts of terrorism, and epidemics; acts of governmental
authorities such as expropriation, condemnation, and changes in laws and regulations; and strikes
and labor disputes, then the Agency may act without the prior recommendation of the Grant Review
Committee.



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 6 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

M. Disbursement of funds

Grant funds will be disbursed only after the following conditions have been met.

Within ninety (90) days uponafter completion of the Work and upon final inspection and acceptance of the
Work by the RDA or it’s authorized representative, the Participant shall complete and submit to the RDA a
properly executed Reimbursement Request Form (supplied by the RDA) showing all expenses incurred in
performing the Work.  In addition, the Participant shall submit to the RDA proof of payment of the
expenditures listed on the Reimbursement Request Form and final lien waivers from all contractors and
subcontractors.

All work has been completed, inspected and approved by the Agency or a representative assigned by the
Agency.

The Agency has received and approved all invoices from the contractor(s).

3. The Agency has received proof that all contractors and subcontractors have been paid, such as lien
releases or cancelled checks

.

4. For Projects which exceed $10,000, reimbursements can be requested at both 50% and 100% of Project
completion.

N. Maintenance Obligation
The Program Participant will have the following maintenance obligations following Project completion or
final inspection by the City, whichever comes later:

1. The Program Participant shall maintain all improvements funded by the Program in good condition
and in accordance with local and State building codes.

2. Conditions that constitute a failure to maintain the property in good condition include, but are not
limited to: peeling paint, chipped surfaces, broken windows, torn awnings, broken lights, broken
walls/fences, boarded windows, excessive bird droppings or debris, graffiti and illegal or non-
conforming signage, and obstructed windows.

3. Agency staff will inspect improvements annually for three (3) years to determine whether
improvements are being properly maintained.

4. Failure to maintain improvements that have been completed with Program grant monies for a
period of three (3) years will result in ineligibility for future financial incentives to that Program
Participant.



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 7 – Program Guidelines City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

O. Checklist
☐ Storefront improvements designed by Contractor or Design Professional

☐ Obtain three (3) written bids on the construction of the storefront improvements

☐ January 1- March 30th: Submit completed Grant Application to the City of Elko Planning Department

☐ April: Grant review committee recommends to the Redevelopment Agency a list of recipients and
grant amounts for each

☐ May: Redevelopment Agency awards grants

☐ Within (30) thirty days after the grant is awarded, Property owner and Program Participant must sign
participation agreement and notice of agreement and record it the notice with the Elko County Recorder

☐ Owner selected contractor to provide Redevelopment Agency with certificate of insurance with
limits as shown in Section J.

☐ Property owner and Program Participant sign Participation Agreement

☐ Property owner and Program Participant sign Notice of Agreement and record it with the Elko
County Recorder

☐ Within (120) one hundred twenty days from date of Agency approval, Contractor contractor obtains
proper permits from the City of Elko Building Department, if required.

☐ Construction begins

☐ All storefront improvements must be completed within twelve (12) months of the effective date of
the signed participant agreement or the date a building permit is issued by the City of Elko (whichever is
later), unless a written extension is granted by the Agency

☐ Reimbursement request at 50% completion if awarded grant exceeds $10,000

☐ Request final inspection from Redevelopment Manager at completion of project

☐ Within (90) ninety days from the date of final inspection, Program Participant must file
Reimbursement request with the City of Elko at 100% completion

☐ 3 years of maintenance as required in Participation Agreement

☐ Notice of Release filed with Elko County Recorder at completion of 3 years of maintenance



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 1 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

Participation Agreement
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ___ day of ____________________________, 20

____ (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Elko Redevelopment Agency, a political subdivision
of the State of Nevada organized and existing under Chapter 279 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the
“RDA”), and:

NAME OF PARTICIPANT:

__________________________________________________________________

PARTICIPANT’S PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

PARTICIPANT’S MAILING ADDRESS (IF DIFFERENT):

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ____________________________________________

EMAIL ADDRESS: _________________________________________________

(the “Participant”).

PHYSICAL ADDRESS OF PROJECT PROPERTY:

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________
(the “Project Property”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, the RDA, in its continuing effort to support the redevelopment of the Elko
Redevelopment Area (the “Area”), has created the Storefront Improvement Program (the
“Program”);



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 2 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

WHEREAS, the primary objective of the Program is to encourage and support building and
business owner investment in upgrading their existing building storefronts on selected properties
within the Area;

WHEREAS, the Program is a process that involves a one-time reimbursement of up to 50%
of approved expenses from the RDA for businesses and building owners who construct eligible
improvements to the facades of their buildings, to include expenses for construction, painting and
refinishing, preparation and permitting of plans, building permit fees, design work and construction
drawings (the “Work”);

WHEREAS, the Program will provide reimbursement for a Participant’s investment in the
Work in an amount between $2,500.00 and $25,000.00 per parcel (the “Grant”);

WHEREAS, the Participant must apply for and be approved in order to receive the Grant;

WHEREAS, the Participant must comply with this Agreement, to include any requirements
incorporated by reference in order to be eligible for the Grant;

WHEREAS, the Project Property is located within the Area;

WHEREAS, the Participant seeks to take part in the Program pursuant to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above recitals and the terms and
conditions set forth below, the RDA and the Participant agree as follows:

I.

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

A. The RDA shall reimburse the Participant for the cost of the Work at the rate of
__________________________ percent (___%); provided, the Grant amount shall be no less than
TWO THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) per Assessor’s Parcel Number
and no greater than TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) per Assessor’s Parcel
Number.

B. Costs which are eligible for reimbursement include all labor, material, equipment and
other related items necessary for the proper performance of the Work as shown on the plans, design
drawings, specifications and estimates approved by the RDA, attached at Appendix 1 and
incorporated herein; provided, costs paid for in cash will not be reimbursed by the RDA.



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 3 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

C. In order to be eligible to participate in the Program, all requirements set forth in the
Program Guidelines, attached hereto at Appendix 2 and incorporated herein, must be complied
with and satisfied.

D. By signing this Agreement, the Participant certifies that all requirements set forth in
the Program Guidelines have been satisfied and will remain satisfied throughout the Term (defined
below).

E. Participant acknowledges that it has obtained all certificates of insurance from its
contractor(s) in compliance with the Program Guidelines.

F. In the event the RDA determines that the Participant has materially misrepresented
any information needed to obtain approval for participation in the Program, to include the foregoing
certification that the requirements set forth in the Program Guidelines have been satisfied, the RDA
may thereupon immediately recover the entire amount of the Grant from the Participant, together
with reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in enforcing this provision.

II.

SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL

A. A. No Work shall be undertaken until the proposed its design has been
submitted to and approved by the RDA. Following approval, the Participant shall contract for the
Work within one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of approval by the RDA Grant Review
Committee.

A.B. This aAgreement must be executed by the Participant within thirty (30) days of the date
of RDA approval.

B.C. B. All Work shall be completed within nine twelve (9-12) months of the
Effective date Date (defined above) of this signed participant agreement or the date a building permit
(if required) is issued by the City of Elko (whichever is later), unless a written extension is granted by
the Agency.  If a building permit is required for the Work, the grant recipientParticipant must submit
all necessary documentation to the City of Elko Building Department within one hundred twenty (120)
days fromof the date of AgencyRDA approval. approval by the RDA Grant Review Committee.

III.

REVIEW BY RDA

The RDA will periodically review the progress of the Work.  These inspections do not
replace any required permit inspections by the City of Elko or any other regulatory authority.  All



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 4 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

defective Work or Work which fails to conform to the approved plans, design drawings and
specifications at Appendix 1 shall be immediately brought into conformity by the Participant.

IV.

ACCEPTANCE BY RDA

Within ninety (90) days Uponof completion of the Work and upon final inspection and
acceptance of the Work by the RDA or it’s authorized representative, the Participant shall complete
and submit to the RDA a properly executed Reimbursement Request Form (supplied by the RDA)
showing all expenses incurred in performing the Work.  In addition, the Participant shall submit to
the RDA proof of payment of the expenditures listed on the Reimbursement Request Form and
final lien waivers from all contractors and subcontractors.

V.

PAYMENTS BY RDA

A. The RDA shall, within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the Reimbursement
Request Form, all proofs of payment, and all lien waivers from all contractors and subcontractors,
issue a Final Payment to the Participant as reimbursement for ________________ percent (___%) of
the approved expenditures for performance of the Work, less any amounts previously reimbursed
and subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement.

B. In addition to the foregoing, if the total amount of the Grant is $10,000.00 or more,
upon completion of fifty percent (50%) of the Work and following receipt of a Reimbursement
Request Form and all proofs of payment, the RDA may, in its discretion, issue a Progress Payment
to the Participant as reimbursement for ___________________ percent (___ %) of the approved
expenditures for the Work performed up to that point in the Project, subject to any limitations set
forth in this Agreement; provided, in the event Participant subsequently fails to complete the Project
in accordance with this Agreement, Participant shall immediately upon demand by the RDA repay
the Progress Payment to the RDA, together with interest thereon at the rate of eighteen percent
(18%) per annum accruing from the date the Progress Payment was made.

VI.

FAILURE TO COMPLETE WORK

If the Participant (including Participant’s contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s)) fails to
complete the Work in accordance with this Agreement, to include the  approved plans, design
drawings and specifications at Appendix 1, or if the Participants fails to meet a deadline set forth in
this Agreement, then upon written notice from the RDA to the Participant in the manner provided
herein, this Agreement shall terminate and the financial obligation on the part of the RDA shall also



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 5 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

terminate without any retroactive obligation on the part of the RDA to reimburse the Participant for
any Work performed or money or labor expended.  Any breach of this Agreement by the Participant
shall automatically and immediately disqualify the Participant from any Grant funds, to include
Grant funds for Work already performed or funds already expended.

VII.

MAINTENANCE OF WORK, REMEDIES FOR BREACH

Upon completion of the Work pursuant to this Agreement or final inspection by the RDA or
it’s authorized representativeCity, whichever comes later, and for the duration of the Term (defined
below)continuing for a period of sixthree (63) years thereafter, the Participant and any subsequent
transferee of the Project Property, such as a purchaser, shall properly maintain the completed Work
in finished form and without change or alteration.  The foregoing maintenance obligations shall
include all such obligations set forth in the Program Guidelines.  For the duration of the Term
(defined below), the Participant and any subsequent transferee of the Project Property shall not enter
into any contract for or take any other steps to alter, change or remove any or all of the completed
Work, nor shall the Participant or any subsequent transferee undertake any other changes, by
contract or otherwise, to the improvements made in performing the Work, unless the proposed
changes are first reviewed and approved by the RDA.  In the event the Participant or any subsequent
transferee breaches this Article VII (Maintenance of Work, Remedies for Breach), the RDA may
thereupon recover the entire amount of the Grant from the Participant and/or the subsequent
transferee of the Project Property, together with reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in
enforcing this provision. Annual inspections will be conducted by the AgencyRDA or its authorized
representative to assure compliance with this Section VII.

VIII.

RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AND SUCCESSORS

The Participant shall, at the request of the RDA, record a restrictive covenant for the purpose
of preserving the completed Work throughout the Term (defined below).  The Participant shall
inform any subsequent purchaser of Project Property of this Agreement and the obligations herein
contained.  The Participant (or any subsequent transferee) shall include in any conveyance of the
Project Property during the Term language incorporating by reference the obligations of this
Agreement and specifically reciting the text of Article VII (Maintenance of the Work) and making
these obligations binding upon any transferee.

IX.

TERM



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 6 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate at a maximum of
five three (35) years thereafter, unless earlier terminated as provided herein; the period of time
during which this Agreement remains in effect is referred to herein as the “Term.” The tTerm is
inclusive of the time periods stipulated inrequired under Section II and Section IV. The tTerm may
be extended by written authorization fromof the RDA for a period not to exceed one (1) year.

X.

HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Participant shall indemnify the RDA and shall release, hold and save the RDA harmless
from and against all liabilities, debts, claims, actions, causes of action, losses, damages and
attorney’s fees now existing or that may hereafter arise or result from performance of the Work.
Without limitation, as used in this Article X, the term “the RDA” shall include all officials, officers,
employees, directors, employees, agents and representatives of the Elko Redevelopment Agency.

XI.

OTHER WORK

Nothing herein is intended to limit, restrict or prohibit the Participant from undertaking any
other work in or about the Project Property which is unrelated to the Work.

XII.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. AMENDMENT.

No modification, amendment, addition to, or termination of this Agreement nor waiver of
any of its provisions shall be valid or enforceable unless in writing and signed by all the parties.

B. ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement shall be binding on the parties’ successors and assigns.

C. NOTICES.

Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be sufficient if in
writing and if personally delivered or sent by registered or certified mail to:

If to the RDA:



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 7 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

Elko Redevelopment Agency
c/o Elko City Planner
1751 College Avenue
Elko, Nevada 89815

If to the Participant:

Name of Participant: ________________________________________________

Name of Contract (if different): ________________________________________

Title of Contact: ____________________________________________________

Mailing Address: ___________________________________________________

City/State/Zip Code: ________________________________________________

or such other address as shall be specified in writing by either the RDA or the Participant.

D. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE.

This Agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced according to the laws of the State
of Nevada.  Any action to enforce this Agreement or regarding any benefits or conditions of this
Agreement shall be filed in the Fourth Judicial District Court in and for the County of Elko, State of
Nevada, which court shall have jurisdiction and venue over said action.

E. ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS.

In the event of any litigation concerning this Agreement between the parties, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover all of its court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees from the other
party.

F. SEVERABILITY.

In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable in
any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, then all other terms and provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not in any way be affected or impaired
thereby.

G. CAPTIONS.

The captions appearing at the commencement of the articles and sections and herein are not



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 8 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

substantive but are descriptive only and for convenience in reference to this Agreement and in no
way whatsoever define, limit or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement or other otherwise
affect the same.

H. NO INTEREST IN PROJECT PROPERTY.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to transfer any interest in the Project Property
to the RDA.

I. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement (including any appendices hereto and any documents incorporated by
reference) contains the entire agreement between the RDA and the Participant with respect to the
subject matter hereof, and all representations, provisions and covenants between the parties, whether
verbal or written, are merged herein.

J. TIME OF THE ESSENCE.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement and of each covenant and agreement that is to be
performed at a particular time or within a particular period of time.  However, if the final date of any
period which is set forth in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday under the
Laws of the United States or the State of Nevada, then the time of such period shall be extended to
the next date which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

LK. CONFLICTING TERMS.

In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and any document incorporated herein by
reference, to include the appendices hereto, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

L. NOTICE OF RELEASE.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, in the event the RDA determines that
the Participant has satisfied all obligations hereunder, to include all maintenance obligations, the
RDA shall record a Notice of Release with the Elko County Recorder thereby releasing the
Participant from all obligations to the RDA under this Agreement and placing the public on notice
thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement:

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY: By: _______________________________
Signature



Storefront Improvement Grant Program

pg. 9 – Participation Agreement City of Elko Redevelopment Agency

_______________________________
Print Name

PARTICIPANT: By: _______________________________
Signature

_______________________________
Print Name



Agenda Item # I.D. 
 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 

Agenda Action Sheet 
 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible award of or authorization to rebid the 

Block Ends Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION  

 

2. Meeting Date: February 23, 2021  
 
3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 
 
4. Time Required: 10 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: At the November 10, 2020 meeting, the RDA took action to 

authorize staff to solicit bids for the Block Ends Project. Bids were received until 

3:00 p.m. on February 10, 2021. A bid tabulation is included in your packet. Five of 

the six bids received were over budget. One bid was within budget but it was 

determined to be nonresponsive. CL 

 

6. Budget Information: 
 

  Appropriation Required: $0.00 
  Budget amount available: $675,000.00 
  Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 
 
7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
   
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: A complete bid tabulation  

 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RDA 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner/Redevelopment Manager 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 
12. Agency Action:  

 
13. Agenda Distribution:  



Name Acha Const. Name MKD Name Ruby Dome, Inc Name
Great Basin Engineering

Cont. Name Remington Construction Name Granite Construction
Address 491 VFW DR. Address 20 Stokes Address 6525 E. Idaho St. Address 197 Elko Summit Dr. Address 423 5th St. Address 905 Railroad St. Suite 2020

City State Elko, NV  89801 City State Elko, NV 89801 City State Elko, NV 89801 City State Elko, NV 89801 City State Elko, NV 89801 City State Elko, NV 89801

Phone No. 775-388-4222 Phone No. 775-848.1448 Phone No. 775-738-2154 Phone No. 775-299-4085 Phone No. 775-738-6001 Phone No. 775-842-3305

Fax No. Fax No.

No. Bid Item Description Quantity Unit  Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price

1
Remove & Dispose of Concrete

Sidewalk_________________per Sq. FT.
197 SQ  $            4.25 $837.25 $10.00 $1,970.00 $5.68 $1,118.96 6.42$ $1,264.74 7.00$ $1,379.00 1.00$ $197.00

2
Remove & Dispose of Type 1 Curb & Gutter

@ ____________per Lineal Ft.
811 LF  $            6.50 $5,271.50 $10.00 $8,110.00 $6.29 $5,101.19 12.49$ $10,129.39 4.00$ $3,244.00 3.50$ $2,838.50

3
Remove & Dispose of Catch Basin @

__________Each
2 EA  $     1,100.00 $2,200.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $1,858.43 $3,716.86 759.63$ $1,519.26 1,250.00$ $2,500.00 1,850.00$ $3,700.00

4
Remove & Dispose of Asphalt

Pavement@______________ per Sq. Ft.
26,139 SQ  $            2.00 $52,278.00 $1.75 $45,743.25 $0.95 $24,832.05 1.12$ $29,275.68 0.61$ $15,944.79 1.65$ $43,129.35

5

Construct Asphalt Patch per City Detail R-9.1

Includes Aggregate Base Course @

___________per Sq Yd.

463 SY  $          54.00 $25,002.00 $25.00 $11,575.00 $103.30 $47,827.90 69.17$ $32,025.71 155.00$ $71,765.00 190.00$ $87,970.00

6

Construct Type 1 Curb and Gutter per City

Detail R-2.1, Includes Aggregate Base

Course @__________per Lineal Ft.

901 LF  $          56.00 $50,456.00 $52.00 $46,852.00 $47.57 $42,860.57 62.06$ $55,916.06 60.00$ $54,060.00 48.00$ $43,248.00

7

Construct Post Curb (Barrier Curb) per City

Detail R-2.2, Includes Aggregate Base

Course @____________per Lineal Ft.

1,032 LF  $          41.00 $42,312.00 $20.00 $20,640.00 $33.07 $34,128.24 42.73$ $44,097.36 47.00$ $48,504.00 37.00$ $38,184.00

8

Construct 4" Thick Concrete Sidewalk per

City Detail R-3.1, Includes aggregate Base

Course @ ________per Sq. Ft.

5,614 SF  $            8.50 $47,719.00 $12.00 $67,368.00 $11.84 $66,469.76 12.82$ $71,971.48 13.50$ $75,789.00 12.00$ $67,368.00

9

Construct ADA Ramps with Truncated

Domes and Post Curb Where Needed,

Includes Aggregate Base Course @

__________per Sq. Ft.

455 SF  $          15.00 $6,825.00 $75.00 $34,125.00 $15.93 $7,248.15 46.36$ $21,093.80 30.00$ $13,650.00 43.00$ $19,565.00

10
Construct 6" Diameter C900 Water Main @

__________ per Lineal Ft.
26 LF  $          72.00 $1,872.00 $75.00 $1,950.00 $185.80 $4,830.80 227.75$ $5,921.50 162.00$ $4,212.00 185.00$ $4,810.00

11
Relocate Existing Fire Hydrant @

___________per Ea.
2 EA  $     1,550.00 $3,100.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,816.49 $7,632.98 2,534.49$ $5,068.98 3,705.00$ $7,410.00 6,300.00$ $12,600.00

12
Adjust Water Valves to Finish Grade

@______ per. Ea.
1 EA  $        840.00 $840.00 $600.00 $600.00 $861.97 $861.97 298.91$ $298.91 656.00$ $656.00 475.00$ $475.00

13

Construct Antique Light Poles Per Special

Provisions #1 on Pg. 68 Below @ _________

per Ea.

4 EA  $     9,844.00 $39,376.00 $11,500.00 $46,000.00 $3,683.00 $14,732.00 10,206.86$ $40,827.44 15,487.50$ $61,950.00 10,000.00$ $40,000.00

14
Construct N-9 Pull Box @ __________per

Ea.
6 EA  $     1,005.00 $6,030.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $351.62 $2,109.72 451.52$ $2,709.12 789.00$ $4,734.00 476.00$ $2,856.00

BID TABULATION
PROJECT NAME: RDA- DOWN TOWN BLOCK-END PROJECT

DATE: BID OPENING 2/10/21 @ 3:00 PM



15
Construct N-36 Pull Box @ _________ Per

Ea.
5 EA  $     1,005.00 $5,025.00 $800.00 $4,000.00 $635.11 $3,175.55 904.92$ $4,524.60 1,870.00$ $9,350.00 660.00$ $3,300.00

16
Adjust Pull Box to finished Grade

@________per Ea.
5 EA  $        900.00 $4,500.00 $600.00 $3,000.00 $158.96 $794.80 358.70$ $1,793.50 330.00$ $1,650.00 475.00$ $2,375.00

17
Relocate Existing Street Sign @

___________per Ea.
13 EA  $        288.00 $3,744.00 $300.00 $3,900.00 $345.16 $4,487.08 274.04$ $3,562.52 195.00$ $2,535.00 250.00$ $3,250.00

18
Remove and Dispose of Existing Sign @

_________ per Ea.
7 EA  $        160.00 $1,120.00 $120.00 $840.00 $143.46 $1,004.22 239.12$ $1,673.84 171.00$ $1,197.00 35.00$ $245.00

19

Furnish and install ADA parking Sign and

Striping for Parking Stall or Access Aisle @

________per Ea.

15 EA  $        650.00 $9,750.00 $700.00 $10,500.00 $657.69 $9,865.35 692.11$ $10,381.65 397.00$ $5,955.00 580.00$ $8,700.00

20
Construct Electrical Conduit and Trenching

@ _______per Lineal Ft.
1,493 LF  $          39.50 $58,973.50 $30.00 $44,790.00 $69.94 $104,420.42 49.74$ $74,261.82 22.00$ $32,846.00 120.00$ $179,160.00

21
Install Wiring and Devices @ ___________

per Lump Sum
1 LS  $     9,000.00 $9,000.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00 $29,636.52 $29,636.52 8,154.82$ $8,154.82 21,400.00$ $21,400.00 7,500.00$ $7,500.00

22

Install Electrical Service Pedestal includes

Conduit and trench from Adjacent

Transformer @ ___________per Ea.

1 EA  $   12,000.00 $12,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $10,009.78 $10,009.78 8,636.74$ $8,636.74 9,951.00$ $9,951.00 8,300.00$ $8,300.00

23

Construct 30" Diameter HDPE Storm Drain

Pipe per City Detail U-2.1 @ _______per

Lineal Ft.

33 LF  $        475.00 $15,675.00 $150.00 $4,950.00 $172.21 $5,682.93 197.32$ $6,511.56 239.00$ $7,887.00 260.00$ $8,580.00

24
Construct Type 4-R Drop Inlet per City Detail

D-2.1 @ __________ per Ea.
1 EA  $     3,500.00 $3,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,546.32 $4,546.32 5,963.10$ $5,963.10 5,602.00$ $5,602.00 5,500.00$ $5,500.00

25
Construct Type 3-R Drop Inlet per City Detail

D-1.1 @ __________per Ea.
1 EA  $     3,600.00 $3,600.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,496.38 $4,496.38 4,710.28$ $4,710.28 4,498.00$ $4,498.00 4,750.00$ $4,750.00

26
Remove and Dispose of Existing Drop Inlet

@ _________ per Ea.
2 EA  $     1,100.00 $2,200.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,507.49 $3,014.98 358.70$ $717.40 3,092.00$ $6,184.00 1,850.00$ $3,700.00

27

Adjust Catch Basin To Finished Grade per

special Provisions #2 on Pg. 76 @

____________@ per Ea.

1 EA  $     1,600.00 $1,600.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,679.19 $2,679.19 896.72$ $896.72 2,772.00$ $2,772.00 500.00$ $500.00

28 Furnish & Install Sod @ ________per Sq. Ft. 15,877 SF  $            1.00 $15,877.00 $2.50 $39,692.50 $4.46 $70,811.42 3.99$ $63,349.23 3.00$ $47,631.00 5.00$ $79,385.00

29

Furnish and Install Irrigation. Includes all

Pipes, Valves, Controller, Control Wires, and

necessary Components as Shown on the

Plans and Specifications @ _________per

Lump Sum

1 LS  $   18,000.00 $18,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $63,494.48 $63,494.48 111,716.95$ $111,716.95 68,250.00$ $68,250.00 73,000.00$ $73,000.00

30
Furnish and Install 1.5" Caliper Spring Snow

Crabapple Tree @ ___________per Ea.
8 EA  $        954.00 $7,632.00 $600.00 $4,800.00 $638.41 $5,107.28 904.31$ $7,234.48 866.25$ $6,930.00 563.00$ $4,504.00

31
Furnish and Install 2" Caliper Autumn Blaze

Maple Tree @ ________per Ea.
6 EA  $        954.00 $5,724.00 $700.00 $4,200.00 $638.41 $3,830.46 904.31$ $5,425.86 866.00$ $5,196.00 563.00$ $3,378.00

32
Furnish and Install Shademaster Honeylocust

Tree @ _____________per Ea.
6 EA  $        960.00 $5,760.00 $700.00 $4,200.00 $638.41 $3,830.46 904.31$ $5,425.86 866.00$ $5,196.00 563.00$ $3,378.00

33
Mobilization / Demobilization @

___________ per Lump Sum
1 LS  $   18,623.75 $18,623.75 $60,193.25 $60,193.25 $39,810.38 $39,810.38 12,805.01$ $12,805.01 49,706.00$ $49,706.00 83,554.15$ $83,554.15

Total $486,423.00 $589,999.00 $634,169.15 -$ $659,865.37 $660,533.79 $850,000.00



MISSING CERTIFICATE
NOT TO ENGAGE IN

BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL

1ST

NO BOYCOTT OF ISREAL FORM
INCLUDED

6TH2ND

OFF .02

3RD

COMPLETE BID

4TH

COMPLETE BID

5TH

 SOME WHITE OUT AND ERASURE

ON BID FORM

COMPLETE BID COMPLETE BID



Approved 

Budget

As  of 

2/10/2021

Approved 

Budget

As of 

2/10/2021

Beginning Fund Balance $1,358,208 Legal $20,000

Budget to beginning fund balance dif. -$58,339 Public Improvements

Property Tax Revenues (anticipated) $393,888 $235,447 Misc. items $1,000 $247

Interest Revenues (anticipated) $7,000 $941 Storefront Program (pledged 2017) $25,000

Transfer in from General Fund Storefront Program (pledged 2018) $25,000

Storefront Program (pledged 2019) $16,918

Storefront Program (pledged 2020) $98,448

Total Revenues $1,700,757 $236,388 Storefront Program (pledged 2021) $50,000

Public-Private Partnerships $75,000

RAC Recognition Program $1,000

Balance to date $1,531,611 400 Block Alley power project ?

Block End Project $600,000 $4,400

Stockmen's Parking lot $99,999

Balance towards savings $688,292

Revolving Fund $100

Total Expenses $1,700,757 $4,646

Redevelopment Agency 2019/2020 Budget
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Revenues Expenditures

M:\Planning\Redevelopment\RDA Budgets\RDA Budget 2020-2021

2/17/2021


















































	02-23-21 RDA Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	11-10-20 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.4-12)
	Item I.A. - New Business - Redevelopment Annual Report 2020.pdf (p.13-15)
	Item I.B. - New Business - Ratification of Braemar Storefront extension.pdf (p.16-26)
	Item I.C. - New Business - Storefront Improvement Program Amendments.pdf (p.27)
	Item I.D. - New Business - Award bid for Block Ends project.pdf (p.28-31)
	RDA Budget 2020-2021.pdf (p.32)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Jan 2021
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Feb 2021

	Agency Name: City of Elko Redevelopment Agency
	Project Area Name: Redevelopment Area
	Tax District Numbers: 11.5
	Fiscal Year covered by this report: 2020
	Property tax revenue received from any tax increment area as defined in NRS 278C130: $324,679.67
	Combined overlapping tax rate of the redevelopment area: 3.4823
	Effective property tax rate of the redevelopment area: 2.7168
	e property in the redevelopment area: 48,302,745
	previous fiscal year: Off
	If Yes please explain the reason for the difference attach additional pages if necessary e: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	Attach a copy of any memoranda of understanding MOU into which the agency enters: Off
	Attach a detailed amortization schedule for any debt incurred for the redevelopment area and the reason for incurring the debt: Off
	8  Has there been any change to the boundary of the redevelopment area: Off
	If Yes please explain the reason for the change attach additional pages if necessary: 
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3_2: 
	Name please print: Catalina Laughlin
	Title: City Planner/Redevelopment Mgr.
	Date: 1/31/2021


